
United NQt;o",~

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
t'()Rn'·SH'ONIl SESSI()~

SPFCIA1, POl TTJC'H C'ClMMITTEF
et" 1lI•• tlI'\O

".]c.1 /'11'\
~/'I1'\~8Y, 2~ Oet/'lr~r ]9P7

et ]0 e.II'.
N.", YNk

SUMMAPY PECOPD Of ~~F Bt,", MEFTING

C,",1l I rll'el'\ 1 Mr. AL-J(/WAIH ({leter)

CONTFNTS

AGF-Nnll n'EM B11 {lUESTION OF THE COMPOS ITION a' THE RELEVANT OIlGANf: OF THE UNITED
NATIONS

AGENDA TTEM q(ll ('\UFf:T:"ON OF THE MALAGASY TSIANDS a' GLOPIEllSEf:, JUAN DE NOVA,
EllPOPA ANn BASSAS DlI IN,)IA

IIC:FNnfl I~FM 791 tlNITFD NATIONS RELIEF AND \<'ORI<f: AGENCY FOP PAIESTINF PFFUGEES IN
THE NFAF FAE'r

(1-) PlPClPT OF TPE \<"ORI<ING GROllP ON TPE , INANC'IOO OF TPE UNITED NM'IONS PF1,I""
!It.'I." .'OPICF A~FN(,Y 'OP PAU'F"'YNF PE1".JI.~FF" !N ~HF NFAP FAt''''

«-) PFPC'm' Oil' THE tlNI~FD NlI'TIONS CONCUYlI'l'ION C('t>lfo'YFFINl 'OR PAI,FF-TYNF

(c'l) PFPClil"'f. N" "'PF SFrPF"'"PY-GFNFRlI,

..... _._.._-_._-------_.----
-Tnll f4',c",III .':rc,III'n (','rrt,'lllll" \hl,ultJ 't \enl undtt tlw \llnlhHt tl', mtnlMt ,"lht Jrlr

,Itllln ,,,n,tlne,l nUI'II: ,'" ".1 "If ",11, ,r 1'"iJlhlJll"" t,l llw ("lltl ,,1 tht (un" ••1 Rt~IlUh hlll,nll SI,',I,,,n

rl",'m Ilr: '\1' " 1'·,gfl,l ',It I 'I" Piu .. an,J 11lI,·1'"",'rlt,·~ ,.• I,'('lr~ 1" IN rt"I'ld

P7-'\F4~0 71 ~4S (F)

DiPtr. GF.mRlII,
~/SPC/42/sp.e

28 ClctC'r.r ]087

OPIG 11'111 I I ENe:l,IFP

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.25 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 811 QUES'l'ION OF THE COMPOSITION OF THE RELEVANT ORGANS OF THE UNITED
NATlONS

AGENDA ITEM 801 QUESTION OF THE MALAGASY ISLANDS OF GLORIEUSES, JUAN DE NOVA,
EUROPA AND BASSA8 DA INDIA

1. The CHAIRMAN suggosted that the Committell should postpone considera~ion of
both items and recommC!nd that the General A8Iembly shou l ' include them in the
provisional agenda of its forty-third session.

~. It was so decided.

AGENDA ITEM 791 UNITED NATIONS REL,lEF AND WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN
THE NEAR EAST

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMISSIONER-GENERAL (A/42/l3 and Add.l)

(b) REPORT OF THE WORKING GROUP ON THE FINANCING OF THE UNITED NATIONS RELIEF AND
WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE RF.FUGEES IN THE NEAR EAST (A/42/633)

(c) REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS CONCILIATION COMMISSION FOR PALESTINE (A/42/5lS)

(d) REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (A/42/309, 445, 446, 480, 481, 482, 505, 507)

3. The CHAIRMAN drew the Committee's attention to letters pertaining to the item
from the representative~ of Japan, the United Arab Emirates and Kuwait (A/42/131,
177 and 178).

4. Mr. GIACOMELLI (Commissioner-General, United Nations Relief and Works Agency
for Palestine Refugees in the Near East) said that, in the period covered by his
report, the finances of the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine
Refugees in the Near East (UNRWA) had been strengthened overall, owing to stringent
austerity measures, c4reful planning, and generous contributions. However, while
revenues had been adequate to fund core programmes, they were insufficient to cover
UNRWA's increasingly urgent construction needt. Fifty million dollars were needed
in the next three te five years. More than 75 per cent of. the projects were for
new school buildings and other educational facilities.

5. UNRWA had been able to survive years of austerity only by drawing on its
working capital. It nee1ed more than $13 million each month to meet its fixed
obligations, mainly the sal~ries of more than 17,000 area staff employees, alm0st
all of whom were refugees themselves. It now had only a little more than one
month's reserves.

6. UNRWA's proposed budget for 1~88 totalled $216.5 million, an increase of
6 per cent over its latest estimate for 1987. The increase resulted from inflation
and from additional expenses related to the natural growth of the registered

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 3

(Mr. Giacomelli, UNRWA)

refugee population. In preparing its budget, UNRWA faced two unknowns: first,
uncert~inty ov~r the level of voluntary contributions/ second, levels of
remuneration f~r the area staff. Those salaries, which accounted (or more than
70 per cent of expenditures, were liable to increase if salaries paid by host
governments increased.

7. In Lebanon, where thousands of Palestine refugees faced extreme hardship,
UNRWA was experiencing c~ntinuea problems. A special appeal for $20.6 million of
emergency assistance had been launched in February 1987. Of the $15.3 million
pledged, $8.8 million in cash and $0.7 million in goods had been received. Basic
food rations and other emergency supplies had been distributed. UNRWA had been
forced to double its international staff.

8. One of its most urgent tasks currently was to help the many refugee families
who were facing the winter with no roof over their heads. As a result of physical
damage to the besieged Beirut camps, nearly 10,000 residents remained displaced.
l;NRWA was proposing to make cash grants to those refugee families without adequate
shelter. In order to do so, it would need the total amount requested in February.

9. UNRWA would continue to offer its support to joint relief efforts for both
Palestinians and Lebanese, such as those carried out by the World Food Programme,
the United Nations Children's Fund and tne Office of the United Nations Disaster
Relief Co-ordinator. In the occupied territories, especially Gaza, the situation
confronting refugees WAS especially acute. Despite some improvements, much
remained to be done to provide paved roads, sewage and waste water disposal to the
camps. However, increaserl support was being given to the Agency's efforts in the
form of special contributions from a number of Governments, as well as the European
Community, the United Nations Development Programme and non-governmental
organizations.

10. Since talks between the Governments of Egypt and Israel had not yet resolved
the problem of refugees stranded in the Sinai since Israel's withdrawal, UNRWA
continued to provide essential services to 789 families, straining the limited
resources of lts Gaza field office.

11. Thanking the mem~rs of the Committee for their political and financlal
support, he made a special request for fu~ds to finance construction and emergency
operations in Lebanon, as well as payme!"lt of PfE.Y'iOllS pledges.

12. Mr. BERGH J0HANSEN (Norway) speaking in his capacity as Rapporteur of the
Working Group on the Financing of the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for
Palestine Refugees in the the Near East introduced the Group's report (A/42/633).

13. Throughout 1987 the Working Group had fol10wed with concern the difficulties
experienced by the Agency and, in particUlar, the serious financial situation it
continued to face.

I., .



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 4

(Mr. Bergh Johansen, Norway)

14. He drew attention to the current financial situation of UNRWA as presented by
the Comptroller. The Working Group had noted thet the outlook for 1988 Wc ,j

uncertain. Both the regular budget and the corlstruction budget for 1988 required
special fund-raising efforts from UNRWA and generous responses from donors. Th~

budget was also affected by ~he fact that it was expressed in United States
dollars, and was thus highly sensitive to changes in exchange rates.

15. The Working Group was pleased to note that thL Agency has been able to show a
small excess of income over expenditure in 1986. It expressed its appreciation to
contributing Governments for making that possible. However, it regretted that
insufficient special contrib~tions had been pledged to fund the Agency's
construction programme, and sharod the Commissioner-General's concerns about th~

continued postponement of construction ~~ork and the effects of deteriorating
facilities on services.

16. The Working Group recognized the special efforts made by the
Commissioner-General in involving donor Governments more closely with the Agency
and its operations, and appreciated the positive responses by Governments. Those
efforts must continue and bo intensified. Moreover, as had been pointed out by the
Comptroller, fact~rs over which UNRWA had no control, such as changes in currency
exchange rates and inflation as reflected in salar ies paid to comparable staff
employed by host Governments, could seriously affect the Agency's financial
situation. It strongly urged all Governments to make increased and prompt
con tr ibutions.

17. Mr. SALAH (Jordan) said that, despite the positive development in UNRWA's
financial situation, the Agency's financial difficulties had not yet ended and the
plight of the Palestine refugees had not only been perpetuated since 194B but was
in a state of continuous exacerbation.

lB. There was still shortcomings in the services which lmRWA provided. The
educational and health services provided by UNRWA covered only 40 pl·r cent of the
true need of the Palestine refugees. This was because the employees of the Agency
were working in difficult conditions,' partiCUlarly in Lebanon, the West Bank and
Gaza. His delegation offered its condolences to those families whi.ch had had
members killed or injured in the service of UNRWA.

19. Whereas the amount UNRWA spent on educating a single Palestine refugee pupil
did not exceed $15 per year, the actual amount required to ensure the appropriat~

level of education was many times that figure. That was despite the fact that
education occupied the fIrst in the list of priorities set by the Agency. The
Agency's educational programme covered only about 50 per cent of the children at
the elementary and preparatory stages of education. The Arab host countries
therefore had to provide not only for the remainder of the children at those stages
of education but also for the secondary education of all the children of the
refugees. Moreover, even those covered by l~e Agency's programme were not
receiving a proper education. The' increase in the numbers of pupils was not
accompanied by a corresponding increase in the number of teachers and classrooms.
The crowding ;n the cl~8srooms had negatively affected the quality of the education

/ ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 5

(Mr. Salah, Jordan)

[l)cl~ived. 1'htJ[e were no proper school buildings, most of them were rnnted and
conta ined no basic file i li ties such as classrooms, laboratories and libr ar ies. Only
4 per cent of the young refugees were undergoing vocational training, as opposed to
30 per cent. of young people in Jordan and 50 per cent in Israel. 1:'\ vie., of the
desperate ne~] for construction and the shortage of financial resources for that
purpor-. the Jordanian Govetnment, together with the local community, and utilizing
additi al donations from Canada, Japan, the Fed\!ral Republic of Germany, Italy and
some governmental and non-governmental organizations had offered academic
Rcholarships to refugee children. However, it should be noted that the level of
educat. ion and its effect \ veness could not be measured only by numbers of teacher s
and buildings but must be accompanied by a corresponding structure at the
individual, familial and societal levels in order to provide stability and security
for the educational system.

20. The standard of health services provided by UNRWA was no bette than that of
its education programme. The Agency's clinics received five times more patients
than similar medical centres in Jordan, many of the communities of refugees had no
health clinics at all, many aspects of medical treatment were not covered by the
Agency, there were shortages of certain medicaments, and ttl~ equipment of the
clinics was not properly maintained. However, he we'~o~ed the Agency's efforts to
raise the standard of medical service~ offered, particularly in the West Bank.
Howevpr, most of the gains made there were modest in comparison to the actual
pressing need of the refugees in that field.

21. The Agency's relief programme waG alBO in poor shape. Since 1982 it no longer
covered Palestine refugees registered in its areas of ope.:ation outside Lebanon.
Food rations ",ere prOVided to only a limited number of refugees. The criteria
governing eligibility for assistance no longer reflected actual connitions, such as
widesprend unemployment. Consequently, only it fraction of tho~e who qualified as
special hardsnip cases (SHe) were actually receiving auistal;ce

22. His delegation did not wish to blame the administration of UNRWA for
shortcominqs in the services prOVided, because it was well awa""'! that the main
reaS0nn for that state of affairs were its reliance on volun~a(y contributions and
the failur~ of those contributions to keep pace with the gr~wing needs of the
Palestine refugees. In fact, the standard of the services Drovided by the Agency
was actually declining, and the scale of the requirements o~ the Palestinian
refug(~es tended to be dp.liberately understated in th,~ Agency's reports.

23. Commenting on the proposed three-year medium-term plan for the period
1988-1990, his delegation wished to point outl that the plan put forth by the
Commissionel-General was not really an integrated plan but rather was a
presentation of policies and a strategy fur implementing UlIoRWA's budget for the
coming three years, that the plan was based upon the Agency's budget estimate made
in 1985 when UNRWA was at the peak of its financial crisis, that estimates of the
yearly increase in the Agency's budget for the plan's three years ranged between
4 and 5 per cent, with the majority going to assessments as increases in salaries
and nonuses, and that the plan relied on the status quo as a basis f':lr asaessing
the needs of refugees and thus was deficient in describing their true needs. For

I ...



A/SPC/4 2/SR. 8
English
Page 6

(Mr. Salah, Jordan)

example, the anticipaten increase in the numb"r of teachers was not In conforll'ity
with the 'xrected Incre .... ses in the numbers of pupil!!.

24. Support of UNRWA was an investment in peace-keeping and in .... ccordance with thp
Jordanian conviction that the united Nations had a direct humlnlt&rian, political
and moral responsibility to the Palestine refugees. However, th .. primary
responsibility lay with Israel, the country which had not only Cl'()/Ited that plight
but was also responsible for maintaining and exacerbating it. with a view to
allev!.ating the pI ight of Palestine refugees, Jordan had allocated $150 mJ 11 ion for
their humanitarian needs in 1986.

25. The situation in Lebanon had imposed enormous demands on UNRWA. He welcomect
the Commissioner-C.eneral's staten.ent that the cc;re of the refugee problem l/!lY in
the fact that Israel still occupied Arab territories ann prevented Palestine
refugees from returning, in dltfjance of paragraph 11 of General Assemhly resolution
194 (Ill). Now a third generation of Palestine refugees was still awaiting return
to the homes from which they had been exiled. Isra~l pursued a poli~y of
oppression against the Palestine refugees with a view to liquidating the refugee
problem. His delegation was concerned about Israeli plans to eliminate Palestin0
refugee camps by various means. Another source for concern was the deter io~atinq
economic conditions of the refugees under occupation in the Gaza Strip and the West
Bank. The refugees' condition in thp. Gaza Strip had reachecl an unacceptahle
level. More than 500,000 persons, one third of whom were refugees, lived in an
area of 370 square kilometres. There was on alarming shortage of housing,
increasing unemployment, risk of drinking and irrigation water contamination dnd
increasing salination problems because of Israeli utilization of ground water for
Israeli settlements. He called attention to Israel's ~ersistant disregard of the
United Nations request to estahlieh University of Jerusalem "AI-Quns" for
Palestine. Th~t non-compliance was proof of the extent of Israel's obstinacy ann
extremism towarrls th" rights to education and culture of the Palestinian Arab
people. In that connection, h!.s delegation wished to thank Canadian, Japanese ~nrl

other agencies that had providp.d educational grants for Palest!.ne refugees in
Jordan.

26. The problem of the Palestine refugees was f!ssentially the qUE!stion of
Palestine. UNRWA had become a fundamen~al part of the life And existence of
Palestine refugees. llNRW,."s actlviti€'s played an iml"Ortant role In serving thp
humanitarian and economic needs of the r!!fugees. Thus, llNRWA should be maintain!:!n
until the problem of the Palestin!.an refuqees was resolved. The ensuring of thp
necessary finances for its activit!.es was an international responsibility.
However, the Agency's budget should be developed in such a way as to tllke intCl
consideration the actual needs of the refugees every year. If gaining the
necessary finances by means of voluntary contributions ;;>roved to be Ll&ufficienL, ,)
stablE! and permanent :ource of fin .... ncing should be created in order to resolve the
Palestinian refugee question in accordance with United Nations resolutions.

~7. Mr. MANSOUR (Lbserver, Palestine Lib~rQtion Organization) said that 40 years
I!arlier the lnternat!.onal comm',rity had assumed the responsibility for finding iJ

solution to the situation in Palestine. Subsoquently, a refugee problem had ariFlen

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 7

(~. Mansour, Observer, PLO)

as a reRult of Zionist and imporialist aggression, in the form of State-sponsoL.d
and individual acts of terrorism. The number of Palestine refugees currently
exceeoad 2 million and continued to increase. Moreover, the Israeli Deputy Defence
Minister had called for the expulsion of Palestinians from the occupied West Bank
and Gaza Strip to Jordan as the only solution to the Palestinian problem and had
suggested that ~he United States and other Western countries had a bounden duty to
finance it. He and other Israeli leaders, who had made similar racist statements,
rad not been dismissed, possibly because they expressed the thoughts of
Messrs. Shamir and Rabin. Their knowledge of politics was limited to the ways of
ell~inat~ng the Palestinian people.

28. The extermination of Palestine refugees throughout Lebanon was a constant
Israeli strategy. Early in September an Is.aeli air attack against a re~ugee camp
had caused the deaths of SO ciVilians, inclUding women and chiLdren. The timing
and nature of the attack had been conceived to inflict the most casualties,
resulting in a premeditated massacre. The Israeli leaders had consistently refused
to comply with and implement General Assembly resolution 194 (Ill) and other
relevant United Nations resolutions. Their objective was the destruction of the
refugee camps and the forced integration of the refugees within their host
countries.

29. The situation in the occupied Gaza Strip had deteriorated since 1986.
Hundreds of shelters in the camps had been destroyed under the pretext of improving
the quality of life. Since the beginning of OCtober, dozens of Palestinians had
been killed or injured during uprisings, a,ld hundrpds had been d~tained. The
entire area had been converted into a massive concentration camp by the Israeli
occupation for.ces, which thus attempted to promote the zionist myth of the
non-existence of the Pal&stinian people and to deny its inalienable national
rights, inclUding the right to return, the right to self-determina~ionwithout
external interference, and the right to establish an independent State on
Palestinian national soil under the leadership of the Palestine Liberation
Organization (PLO), its sole legitimate repreeentative. The mechanism for
achieving a just solution encompassing those rights was the International Peace
Conference on the Middle East, pursuant to General Assembly resolution 38/58 C, and
~ubsequent resolutions. The clear guidelines for the Conference were the best, if
not the only prerequisite for the settlement of the conflict. The independent
participation of the PLO on an equal footing with other participants and with equal
rights wos a sine qua non for the success of the Conference.

30. The United Nations had to intensify its efforts to remove the obstacles to the
procesR of achieving a just and comprehensive peace in the Middle East posed by the
United States of ~~erica and Israel. The PLO would continue to cc-operate fully
with it in order to reach a solution to the Palestine question and the Arab-Israel
conflict. For its part, the Palestinian people would pursue its struggle to attain
its inalienable national rights under the leadership of the PLO. It was a mistake
to believe that the PLO could be bypassed through quislings or economic bribes.
The Palestinians were more firmly opposed than ever to imperialists, Zionists and
their agents, and their !Jnity under the PLO had never been stronger.

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 8

(Mr. Mansour, Observer, PLO)

31. At ita meeting in October, the Central Council of the PLO had apP':~led to all
Arab and international humanitarian agencies to intensify their efforts to ~nd the
aggression against the besieged ~alestinian camps in Lebanon, to lift the siege and
to allow the Palestinians to reconstruct their shelters, schools and hospitals and
to return to a normal life. The Council had called for the immediate and total
implementation of the agreement reached in Saida in September. It had considered
~he agreement &s a new beginning in Lebanese-Palestinian relations based on
brotherhood and co-operation. In that regard, he praised the role played by IINRWA
and the position taken by it~ Commissioner-General that any linking of humanitarian
assistance to the settlement of the pOlitical contr leray was unacceptable. Thp
PLO would continue to co-operate with UNRWA so that the Agency could carry out its
mandate concerning the camps in Lebanon. Moreover, it was working with all parties
concerned to close the chapter of the camps in Lebanon.

32. Certain sections of the report of the ~ummissioner-General (A/42/13),
particularly paragraphs 1 to 6, showed an improvement over the 1986 report.
However, the situation in the occupied Palestinian territories was alarming. It
was thus essential that the international community should be informed about who
was responsible and what should be done.

33. The Commissioner-General's report (A/42/l3, para. 16) seemed to lay the blame
for violence on the Palestinian people, whereas the policies and practices of the
occupying Power were really responsible. Moreover, it was a right of peoples to
resist occupation by all available methods.

34. Again, paragraph 17 of the report stated tnat reduced employment opportunities
for refugees had contributed to a deterioration in their economic situation,
whereas the main contributor to that deterioration was the colonial economic
policies n P the occupying Power.

35. He reiterated the PLC's position concerning the demolition of refugee camps
and shelters in the occupied territories and opposed any naive acceptance of
so-called "voluntary moves". Families moved because of fear, pressure and
intimidation and the objective of Israeli occupation was to erase the refugee
camps, the daily physical reminder of the Palestinian question.

36. The PLO also reiterated its condemnation of the continued obstruction of
UNRWA's work by the occupying Power and the latter's refusal to pay compensation
for the damage suffered by the Agency during the invasion of Lebanon in June 1982
and other damage caused by Israeli military activities before that date.

37. The PLO called upon UNRWA to continue at least t~ provide all its services in
Lebanon and the occ~pied Palestinian territories in view of the increasing
hardships of the refugees in those areas. It took note with appreciation that the
training centre at Siblin had been reopened in September 1987 and hoped that it
would soon reach full capacity.

38. It asked UNRWA to continue to issue individual car~s for Palestinians eligible
to receive them and regretted that some host Governments were not co-operating with

1.0.



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
page 9

(Mr. Mansour, Observer.-?~)

the Agency in implemen,'ing General Assembly resolutions. It regretted to note that
the reports of th~ Secretary-General and the Commissioner-General had failed to
refer to Iflrael as the occupying Power and request,lld that that should be done in
future.

39. The PLO reiterdted its condemnation .,f Israel for not co-operating with the
Secretary-General in the: endeavours to complete the functional feasibility study on
the proposed University of Jerusalem "AI-Quds" for Palestine refugees (A/42/309).

40. Although the only solution to the refugee problem lay in the return of the
Palestinians to their hcmes and property in Palestine, the PLO sur?Orted the
efforts made by the Secretary-General, the Commissioner-General and the Working
Group on the Financing of UNRW~ to secure a stable financial situation for the
Agency. While those who had first created the problem of the refugees should bear
the responsibility for th~ir action, those who were helping to perpetuate their
misery were doubl" responsible, Nevertheless, the PLO appealed to all to solve the
financial problems of UNRWA.

41. Mr. ABOUI.-GHEl'!' (Egypt) said that, despi te commendable effor ts, the question
of Palestine, which was the core of the conflict in the Middle East, was ~till

without a just solution restoling the legitimate national rights, including the
right to self-determination, of the Palestinian people. Egypt would stand by the
side of the Palestinian people, supporting their just demands, nursing their
wounds, and would participate with them in their l~gitimate struggle to achieve
their goals. During the current year, tragic attac~s on the Palestinian people had
impelled Egypt to assume increasing refponsibility in that sphere. The attention
of the world was to be called to the necessity of confronting its responsibility
and stopping the massacres to which the Palestine refugees had been subject during
the first monthc of 1987.

42. His delegation paid tribute to the Agenc~ 's staff in Lebanon. They were truly
unsung heros dedicated to discharging DNRWA's mission under extremely difficult and
dangerous conditions. He expressed his condolences to the families of those heroes
who had lost their iives in the Lourse of duty.

43. The international community rejected and called for an immediate end to the
actions of the occupying Israeli authorities which hindered the Agp.ncy's achievin'J
its humanitarian mission. Closing schools, interrupting studies in universities
and mistreating Palestinian youth would only increase the Palestinian people'S
resolve to 0ppofle the occupying authorities. The lack of change in the conditions
in the Gaza Strip was a disgrace to mankind. All Powers should move to stop the
suffer in9s of the Paleatinians in Gaza. In that connection, the Egyptian
delegation expressed its appreciation for the efforts being made to improve the
standard of living and economic conditions in that area.

44. Egypt supported the list of priorities set by the Agency in its three-year
medium-term plan. In that connection, Egypt was of the opinion that the issue of
"ocational training for young refugees should receive particular attention, bllt not
dt the expense of othpr educational activities.

! ...



A/SPC/42/SR.(J
En9lish
Page 10

(Mr. AbouI-Gheit, Egypt)

45. The E9yptian delegation sympathized with the Commissioner-General's request
'.hat technical. staff who were financed from the regular United Nations budget
should not be reduced, particularly in view of the unsettled circumstances in the
field.

46. h~at was needed was a true ~ffort towards achieving a compr~hensive, just
settlement with a view to restoring to the Palestinian peo~le its universally
recognized rights. The ~st means of. accomplishing that goal was through convening
an International Poace Conf~rence on the Middle East. Until such a settlement was
attained, however, the Palestine refuge~a would remain the responsibility of the
international community, as r~presented i~ the United Nations.

47. Mr. roULSEN (Denmark), speaking on behalf of the Twelve States members of the
Euro~e&n Community, expressed their concern at the difficulties being faced by
UNRWA in its ~ttempts to take supplios to the refugee camps in Lebanon. They
endorsed the Secretary-General's appeal m~de on 12 February 1987 for a ceese-fire
around the CGrn~~ and had issued a statemen: stron91v urging the parties involved to
ensure that the civilian populrtion received ~ r~gular supply of food, clothing and
medicine. They had also taken &n immediate decision on emergency aid to the
refugees and had confirmed th~ -~mmuni~y's readiness to grant further aid. They
also had profound sympat~y tor the Lebanese people caught up in that violence.

48. The Twelve took a serious view of the continued unjustified destruction of
refugee shelters and the violation of the privileges and immunities of the Agency
and its premises by the authorities of the occupying Power in the West Bank and
Gaza Strip a~d expres,ed deep sympathy to the families ot the seven staff members
killed during the period under review. Tlllt}/ reiterated their appeal for "Iews of
the whereabouts of Mr. Alae Collett, who had been abducted in 1985 when working for
UNRWA.

49. They w~re pleased to learn that the financial situation of UNRWA had improved
duril~ the past ye&r but noted that funding for the construction programme remained
insufficient. In July 1987, the Community had signed a new Convention with the
Agency covering the period 1987-1989, under which it agreed to increase its cash
contribution to the Agencv's education programme by 20 per cent. Together with its
contributions to the teaching programme, the total value of the Co~nunity's aid to
UNRWA in the current year was expected to reach some $42 million.

50. It was ~ncouraging that, in April 1987, the League of Arab States had called
upon its members to increase the level of their contributions to that of 1981.
Financial support for the Agency was a commitment alsumed logically by all those
who voted in favour of the relevant resolutions. While fully appreclating the
valuable services provided by the host Governments for the Palestine refugees, the
Twelve remained concerned at the narrow funding base for UNRWA, with a number of
Western countries providing nearly 90 per cent of the total budget.

51. At the end of 1986, the Community had decided to give tariff-free access for
all manufactured products exported to thl Community by the occupied territories, as

I . ..



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 11

(Mr. Foulsen, Denmark)

well as preferential access for some agricultural products, and hoped that that
measure would help to improve the difficult economic situation in the territories.

52. While the Twelve were actively engaged in the search for peace, they remained
committed to UNRWA's continued activities and encouraged other Member States to
join in the political and financial support of the Agency.

53. Ms. MIAO (China) said that the grim situation in south Lebanon in the past
year had been a cause of great concern for the international community. In spite
of the harsh conditions, however, UNRWA personnel had carried out their duties in a
spirit of selflessness and devotion. !t was very unfortunate that there had been
further casualties among the UNRWA personnel during the past year. Since its
establishment, UNRWA had provided various relief services which had alleviated to a
certain extent the plight of the refugees.

54. There was still a dangerous situation in southern Lebanon which constantly
threatened the safety and survival of the refugees. Because of the refusal of the
Israeli authorities to dismantle their Rsecurity zone" in southern Lebanon, the
Lebanese Government was still unable to re-establish its sovereignty in that area.
At the same time, in the occupied Arab territories the Israeli occupying
authorities were continuing their RsettlementR policy, forcing the local Arab
people to leave their native land and become new refugees. There had also been
frequent attacks against the refugee camps, which had not only endangered the lives
of the refugees themselves but had also threatened the safety of UNRWA personnel
and disrupted their normal work.

55. She hoped that the parties concerned would continue to co-operate with the
Agency in order to alleviate the sufferings of the refugees. In order to ensure
the survival of the Palestinian peopl~ and put an end to the suffering of the
Palestine refugees, the international community should support the struggle of the
Palestinian and other Arab peoples to recover the occupied territories and regain
their national rights. An important means of attaining that objective was to
promote the convening of the International Peace Conference on the Middle East.
China reiterated its resolute determination to support the cause of the Palestinian
people until its ultimate victory.

56. She expressed satisfaction at the continued efforts of the
Commissioner-General to raise funds for the Agency. It was hoped that the
international community would prOVide greater and more effective assistance to the
Palestinian people. China would continue to make its contributions through
bilateral channels and UNRWA.

57. Mr. RAMIN (Israel), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, expressed
regret that the representative of Jordan had treated the problem of the Palestine
refugees as if it existed in a vacuum and had claimed that Israel was responsible
for that problem. He should remember that the refugee problem had been created as
a result of Arab aggression against the establishment of the State of Israel in
1948, in violation of the Charter and General Assembly resolution 194 (Ill). He
should also remember that hundreds of thousands of Jewish refugees had also left

I ...



I\/SPC/42/SR.8
English
p,~ge 12

(~r. Ramin, Israel)

their homes in various Arab lands, leaving behind their property, thus there hall
been an exchlSnge of popuhtion. The problem of the PlSlest.ine refUl]uell lihDu1d be
trelSted in thlSt context.

,8. Ha should also hlSve remembered that a 1lSrg~ number of the PlSlestinians who had
fled had done so on the advice of their own leaders, such as the Mufti of Jeruaalnm
who, as leported in the Cairo dlSily AkhblSr al-Yawm of 12 October 1963, had on
15 MISY 1945 <.Ippealed to Palestinian Arabs to leave Haih and other cities b(!C<lUIW

the Arab armies were ISbout to enter ISnd oust the Jewish gangs from Palestine. 'rhe
Jordanian newspaper Falastin had said on 19 February 1949 that the Arab Stater.
wh ich hlSd encourlSged the PlSlestinilSns to lelSve their homes temporar ily in ()rJer not
to impede the invading ArlSb umies, hlSd failed to ke~p their promises to Llle
refugees.

,9. The repreaentlStive of JordlSn hlSd also claime~ thlSt the A~lSb refug~ps had the
unconditional right to return, on the blSsis of the obsolete a~d distorted ~ersion

of General Assembly resolution 194 (III), paugrlSph 11. Nothing in interniltional
law could oblige a sovereign State to permit the entry of IS spec if ic group of
persons without a directly negotiated ISgreement. Article 2 (1) of the Chartpr ~aid

that the Organization WISS blSsed on the principle of the sovereign equ~lity 01 all
itn Members which therefore all hlSd equlSl rights.

60. JordlSn was IS well-known supporter of Security Council resolution 242 (1967)
and should remember thlSt the solution to the refugee problem WISS only one aspect of
a peace package. As early as 1951, the report of the United Nations Conciliation
Commission for Palestine had stated that the refugee problem, although urgent from
the humanitarian and politiclSl point of view, could not be seplSrated from the rest
of the pelSce negotiations. The representative of Jordan had not mentioned how ~.he

Ar"b States hlSd themselves perpetuated the problem, using it ISS a weapon again~t

Israel. The New York Herald Tribune of 18 August 1968 hlSd reported a f:otm~r head
of UNRWA in Jordan as saying that the ArlSb StlSteS did not want to solve the refugee
prohlem but preferred to keep it as an ISffront to the United Nations. King Hussein
hims.~lf had said in IS speech 1St AmmlSn on 15 June 1966 thlSt he tejected the policy
of keeping refugees within the boundaries of their clSmps l.n orrl'!f to ttansform t.he
problem into one of internlStionlSl financilSl assistance, expressed in traditional
speeches fivery year.

61. lie left the Committee to reflect on those quotatio""I and draw their own
cunclusions.

62. Mr. BURAYZAT (Jordan), speaking in exercise? of the right of reply, said that
the representative of IsrlSel had tried to deny thlSt country's responsibitlty [Il[

the problem of the Palestine refugees by ISccusing ArlSb leaders of incitinq tht:
Palestinian people to flee their hnd in 1948. It was cleu however that the
zionists hlSd deliberately clSused the flight at the Palestinians by carrying out
,lr!l lberate massacres of Arab civililSns in 1948. In his book The Evasive r>eace,
Or. ,John H. 01Svi8, IS former Commissioner-GenerlSl of UtlRWA, had spoken of t;:;;
b~gi~ning of the flight of Palestinian Arabs as early ISS JanulSry 1948. The Lea~ue

of Arab States had decided to come to the aid of the PalestinilSns several months

I ...



A/SPC/42/SR.8
English
Page 13

{Mr. Burayzat, Jordan}

later, in Apr.il 1948. The flight of the Palestinian Arabs had become a stampede
after the fMssacre of the Arab inhabitants of Deir Yassin by Zionist gangs in
April 1948. By May of that year, 250,000 Palestinian refugees had fled the Jewish
occupied territory.

63. The Palestine refugees were not immigrants requesting visas to go to Israel.
They had been forced illegally by Israel to leave their land and had the right to
return. Jordan had never exploited the misery of the Palestinian people and had
always felt that promoting the self-improvement of the Palestine refugees was
consistent with its national commitr,'ent to the Palestinian people. In that regard,
he stressed the need to guarantee the political and national rights of the
Palestinian people and ensure their economic and social security.

64. Mr. RAMIN (Israel), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that he
did not believe that all of the Palestine refugees had left their land in reSponSp'
to calls from Arab leaders. A tragic situation had come about owing to the
fighting, and the resulting fear and suspicion. According to the issue of the
Jordanian daily newspaper AI-Urdunn dated 9 April 1953, Arab leaders had been
responsible for the flight of the Palestine refugees because they had spread false
rumors about Israeli atrocities in order to instil terror in the hearts of the
Arabs in Palestine until they had fled, leaVing their homes and property to the
enemy,. with regard to the persons displaced in 1967, he pointed out that his
Government had permitted 72,000 such persons to return to their homes.
Nevertheless, Israel also had to bear in mind the fact that terrorist organizations
exploited the refugee situation in order to spread fear and cause violence.

65. Mr. HI~1I (Iraq), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that the
representative of the zionist entity had used statistics in order to conceal his
lies and distort historical facts. No reasonable person could believe that peopl~

had fled their homeland without a valid reason. Israeli racism was a well-known
phenomenon with regard to Arabs and Sephardi Jews. Jews had been among the most
wealthy and privileged people in Iraq. They had been appreciated and respected.
Israel had sought to attract Jews from all countries and even paid Jews to emigrate
to Israel.

66. Mr. MANSOUR (Observer, Palestine Liberation Organization), speaking in
exercise of the right of reply, wondered why a State Member of the United Nations
continued to refuse to comply with the expressed will of the international
community calling for the return of t~~ Palestine refugees to their homeland. The
zionist leaders were facing a real dilemma: it could not demand world support
based On moral grounds and then refuse to accept the world's moral judgement. If
Israel wanted to gain the support of the international community, it should abide
by the decisions of the international community. If Israel wanted a peaceful
solution, it should not oppose the convening of the International Peace Conference
on the Middle East with the participation of all parties concerned in order to
address the problem of the Palestinian people. Nothing was preventing Israel from
allowing the refugees to return to their homes. If Israel was sincere about
seeking a solution to the conflict, it would stop trying to eliminate physically
the Palestinians in the occupied territories.

/ ...



A/8PC/42/8R.8
Engli.h
P.g. 14

67, ~ Jft1TAS (Liby.n Ar.b J.mahiriy.), .pe.king in ex.rcis. of the right of
reply, •• id that the P.l•• tinian probl.m w•• rooted in I.r.~l·' ongoing aggression
again.t the Pal••tinian people. Th. p.lestini.n. h.d h.d to fl.~ their homes
bec.u•• of t .•• m••••cr.s plrp.trated ag.in.t thlm by thl Zioni.ts.
o.vid Bln-Gurion h.d st.tld that the Zionist. n.ldld ~o I.t.bli.h • foothold with a
powlrful .rmy .nd thin occupy the rest of thl P.1I.tini.n t.rritory. He and his
succIssor. h.d us.d military force in order to ••i~. the .ntir. territory of
P.le.tin. and drive the Pulestini.n people into Ixile.

The meeting ro•••t 1.10 p.m.


